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Board of School Directors 
Penn Manor School District 
Millersville, Pennsylvania 

BROWN SCHULTZ SHERIDAN & FRITZ 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND BUSINESS ADVISORS 

A Professional Corporation 

Independent Auditors' Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Penn Manor School District as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the School District's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Penn 
Manor School District's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Penn Manor School District as of June 30, 2010, and the 
respective changes in the financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the budgetary 
comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 1,2010 
on our consideration of Penn Manor School District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 
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Information included under management's discussion and analysis and the information about other 
postemployment benefits - schedule of funding progress is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Penn Manor School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Nonprofit 
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

Lancaster, Pennsylvania 
November 1, 2010 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

The discussion and analysis of Penn Manor School District's financial performance provides an overall review 
of the District's financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2010. The intent of this discussion and analysis 
is to look at the District's financial performance as a whole. It should be read in conjunction with the notes to 
the basic financial statements and the financial statements to enhance the understanding of the District's 
financial performance. 

Financial Highlights 

Key financial highlights for 2010 are as follows: 

• Total assets increased by $7.5 million, with a corresponding increase in liabilities of $3.8 million; 
therefore, total net assets increased by over $3.7 million. This is primarily due to the increased local 
and state revenues combined with the addition of technology related real assets. 

• Revenues totaled $66.3 million. General revenues accounted for $51.2 million or 77% of total 
revenues, which is slightly lower than the prior year. Program specific revenues in the form of charges 
for services and food sales, grants and contributions accounted for $15.1 million or 23% of total 
revenues, which is slightly higher than the prior year. The changes in the ratio of revenues can be 
attributed to the infusion of Federal Stimulus funding that was provided for the 2009-10 fiscal year. 

• The District had $60.2 million in expenses related to governmental activities; $12.7 million of these 
expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General 
revenues (primarily taxes) of $51.2 million were adequate to provide for these programs. 

• Among major funds, the General Fund had $63.7 million in revenues and $65.0 million in expenditures 
and other financing uses. This resulted in the reduction of about $1.3 million to fund balance, bringing 
the General Fund's fund balance down to $11.7 million from $13.0 million; after designations, the 
unreserved - undesignated fund balance is $4.8 million. Approximately $1.0 million of the General 
Fund's fund balance is budgeted to be utilized for the year ended June 30, 2011. The projected 
ending undesignated fund balance on June 30, 2011 of $3.8 million represents just over 5.7% of the 
budgeted expenditures and other financing uses for the 2010-11 fiscal year. 

• Net assets for Enterprise Funds increased from $41,141 to $50,780. This increase is attributed to an 
increase in state and federal subsidies received by the District. The expansion of the school breakfast 
program in all buildings and high meal counts continue to provide our students with healthy, nutritional 
meals and our operation with valuable funding. 

Using this Annual Report 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These 
statements are organized so the reader can understand Penn Manor School District as a financial whole. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

The statement of net assets and statement of activities provide information about the activities of the entire 
District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District's finances and a longer-term view of those finances. 
Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how 
the services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial 
statements also present the District's most significant funds with its nonmajor fund presented in total in one 
column. In the case of Penn Manor School District, the General Fund is the most significant fund. 

Reporting on the District as a Whole 

The analysis for the District as a whole begins on page 5. One of the most important questions asked about 
the District's finances is, "Have our financial results this year improved or diminished our overall financial 
position?" The statement of net assets and the statement of activities report information about the District as 
a whole and about the activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets 
and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are 
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the District's net assets and changes in net assets. The change in net assets is 
important because it tells the reader, for the District as a whole, whether the financial position of the District 
has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors. 

In the statement of net assets and the statement of activities, the District's financial information is divided into 
two distinct kinds of activities: 

• Governmental Activities - Most of the District's programs and services are reported here including 
instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant, pupil transportation and 
extracurricular activities. 

• Business-Type Activities - These services are provided on a charge for goods or services basis to 
recover most of the expenses of the goods or services provided. The District's food services are 
reported as business activities. 

Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the District as 
a whole. The District's two principal types of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different accounting 
approaches. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

• Governmental Funds - Most of the District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which 
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for 
spending in future periods. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified 
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted 
to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's general 
government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you 
determine whether there are more or less financial resources that can be spent in the near future to 
finance educational programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities 
(reported in the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) and governmental funds is 
reconciled in the financial statements. 

• Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds use the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; 
therefore, these statements will essentially match. 

The District as a Whole 

Recall that the statement of net assets provides the perspective of the District as a whole. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

Table 1 provides a summary of the District's net assets for 2010 compared to 2009. 

(Table 1) 
Net Assets 

(In Millions) 

Governmental Business-type 
activities activities 

2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Assets: 
Current and other assets $ 34.64 $ 27.73 $ 0.01 $ 0.04 $ 34.65 
Capital assets 80.24 94.59 0.12 0.11 80.36 

Total assets $ 114.88 $ 122.32 $ 0.13 $ 0.15 $ 115.01 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities $ 13.67 $ 12.62 $ 0.05 $ 0.06 $ 13.72 
Noncurrent liabilities 40.13 44.95 0.04 0.04 40.17 

Total liabilities 53.80 57.57 0.09 0.10 53.89 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets 

net of debt 44.03 46.58 0.12 0.11 44.15 
Unrestricted 17.05 18.17 (0.08) (0.06) 16.97 

Total net assets 61.08 64.75 0.04 0.05 61.12 

Total liabilities and 
net assets $ 114.88 $ 122.32 $ 0.13 $ 0.15 $ 115.01 

Total 
2010 

$ 27.77 
94.70 

$ 122.47 

$ 12.68 
44.99 

57.67 

46.69 
18.11 

64.80 

$ 122.47 

In total, net assets increased just over $3.7 million from 2009. Net assets of governmental activities increased 
by $3.67 million while the net assets of business-type activities increased by $9,639. The food service 
operations operated with a slight profit in fiscal 2009-10 with a normal contribution of $50,000. As in past 
years, continued District General Fund support for the food service operation is expected to assist with 
equipment and technology purchases as well as fluctuating healthcare costs. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

(Table 2) 
Changes in Net Assets 

(In Millions) 

Governmental Business-type 
activities activities Total 

2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 0.6 $ 0.5 $ 1.4 $ 1.4 $ 2.0 $ 1.9 
Operating grants 10.6 12.2 0.8 1.0 11.4 13.2 

General revenue: 
Property and other taxes 39.5 39.7 0.0 0.0 39.5 39.7 
Grants and entitlements 11.7 10.9 0.0 0.0 11.7 10.9 
Other 1.9 0.6 0.0 0.0 1.9 0.6 

Total revenues 64.3 63.9 2.2 2.4 66.5 66.3 

Expenses: 
Program expenses, instruction 36.8 38.8 0.0 0.0 36.8 38.8 
Support services: 

I nstructional student support 3.5 3.3 0.0 0.0 3.5 3.3 
Administrative and financial 

support services 5.1 5.3 0.0 0.0 5.1 5.3 
Operation and maintenance 

of plant services 5.0 5.2 0.0 0.0 5.0 5.2 
Pupil transportation 3.0 2.8 0.0 0.0 3.0 2.8 
Student activities 1.3 1.3 0.0 0.0 1.3 1.3 

Capital outlay 0.1 1.6 0.0 0.0 0.1 1.6 
Interest on long-term debt 1.9 1.9 0.0 0.0 1.9 1.9 
Food service 0.0 0.0 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.4 

Total expenses 56.7 60.2 2.3 2.4 59.0 62.6 

Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 7.6 $ 3.7 $ (0.1) $ $ 7.5 $ 3.7 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

The statement of activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants 
offsetting those costs. Table 2 shows, for governmental and business-type activities, the total cost of services 
and the net cost of services for fiscal year 2008-09 as compared to fiscal year 2009-10. It identifies the cost 
of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted state entitlements. 

The District passed the budget for 2010-11 in June 2010 with a 3.49% property tax increase. Under Act 1, the 
state allowed the District to increase up to the adjusted index of 3.5%. While preparing for the 2011-12 
budget, the state has set the adjusted index at 1.7%. This lowered index and the possibility of reduced state 
subsidized support will present significant financial challenges for the District. Management will continue to 
carefully control expenses during the coming years to assure that a balance is struck between the need for 
tax increases in conjunction with the steady structured use of fund balance to balance future budgets. 

Program revenues are used to partially offset the costs of governmental activities. Those program revenues 
that offset expenses this year include: 

• Charges for services which include tuition for nonresident students, fees for extra programs, 
contracted rental of facilities and admission paid to athletic events. 

• Operating grants and contributions include state subsidies for special education, transportation and 
employee benefits, as well as federal and state grants for specific programs. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

Table 3 shows, for governmental activities, the total cost of services and the net cost of services. It identifies 
the cost of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted state entitlements. 

(Table 3) 
Governmental Activities 

(In Millions) 

Total cost Net cost 
of services of services 

2009 2010 2009 2010 

Instruction $ 36.8 $ 38.8 $ 29.6 $ 29.8 
Support services: 

Instructional student support 3.5 3.3 3.2 2.9 
Administrative and financial support services 5.1 5.3 4.9 5.1 
Operation and maintenance of plant 5.0 5.2 4.8 5.0 
Pupil transportation 3.0 2.8 1.3 1.2 
Student activities 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 

Capital outlay 0.1 1.6 0.1 1.6 
Interest on long-term debt 1.9 1.9 0.4 0.7 

Total expenses $ 56.7 $ 60.2 $ 45.5 $ 47.5 

The dependence upon tax revenues and grants and entitlements for governmental activities is apparent. 
Nearly 77% of instructional activities are supported through taxes and other general revenues as compared 
with 80% in the previous year. When looking at the total governmental activities, general revenue and tax 
support remains at a similar rate of 79%. The community, as a whole, is by far the primary financial support 
for Penn Manor School District. 

Expenses for governmental activities rose by $3,450,086, which is a 6.0% overall increase over the prior year. 
Much of the increase can be attributed to the influx of Federal Stimulus funding which required the District to 
make expenditures within a tight timeframe. The Federal Stimulus funds remain in place for the 2010-11 fiscal 
year and then cease. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

Business-Type Activities 

Business-type activities consist only of food service operations. This program had revenues, including state 
and federal support, of $2.4 million and expenses of $2.4 million for the fiscal year. A modest increase in 
meal prices for some tiers was instituted at the beginning of the 2009-10 school year. Net assets are listed as 
$50,780 as of June 30, 2010. The increase of net assets can be attributed to an increase in state and federal 
meal subsidies received as a result of higher meal counts and the expansion of the student breakfast 
program. Self-funded healthcare costs continue to be a concern for the food service operation. In spite of 
rising costs, no increase in student and adult prices for meals was implemented for the 2009-10 school year in 
recognition of the economic situation facing our community. The food service operation again received 
support from tax revenues in 2009-10 in the form of a $50,000 budgeted transfer from the District's General 
Fund. A $100,000 transfer has been budgeted for the 2010-11 school year in an effort to continue assisting 
the food service operations build positive net assets. 

The District's Funds 

The District's major funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental 
funds had total revenues and other financing sources of $74.1 million and expenditures of $64.4 million. This 
resulted in the overall fund balance increasing by $9,714,605. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

General Fund transfers to other funds included the normal operating transfers to the Debt Service 
Fund for bond principal and interest, $1,500,000 to the Capital Reserve Fund and $50,000 to the Food 
Service Fund which represented budgeted General Fund support for these areas. At year-end, an 
additional transfer to Capital Reserve of $2.0 million allowed a transfer of resources for planned 
expenditures on capital projects. 

The General Fund fund balance decreased by $1,370,967. Legislation enacted in December 2003 
mandates that a school district may not carry an unreserved, undesignated fund balance that exceeds 
8% of expenditures. A redesignation/commitment of fund balance occurred during the auditing 
process that set the estimated unreserved fund balance at 7.0%. A redesignation/commitment of 
funds will occur during the budgeting process for the 2011-12 fiscal year to accommodate the current 
year estimates calculated each spring. 

The District starts the next fiscal year with a total fund balance of 17.4% of budgeted expenditures. A 
large portion of the fund balance is designated for planned and expected expenses related to the 
projected increase in employer retirement costs associated with the PSERS program, technology 
replacements and a new elementary textbook series. Planned use of the fund balance during the 
2010-11 fiscal year is budgeted to keep the District below the 8% limit on June 30, 2011. 

The planned, budgeted use of fund balance allowed the District to hold the tax millage steady for the 
2009 tax levy at 15.91 mills. A tax increase was implemented for the 2010 tax levy in addition to 
planned use of fund balance to assist the District in balancing the budget. Tough economic years are 
expected in coming years as the Act 1 Index is expected to remain at historically low rates. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

General Fund Budgeting Highlights 

The District's General Fund budget is prepared according to Pennsylvania law. 

During the course of fiscal 2010, the District administered expenditures based on its General Fund budget. 
The District uses site based budgeting, and the budgeting systems are designed to tightly control total site 
budgets but provide flexibility for site management. At the end of the fiscal year, the Board approved certain 
budgetary transfers to be made as needed, to comply with statutory requirements. No change was made to 
original revenue or expenditures/other financing uses budget total amounts; budgets were transferred within 
the original totals approved for 2009-10. 

For the General Fund, actual revenues were $63.7 million; this was $1.3 million under the original budget 
estimates of $65.0 million. Most of this difference was due to the lower than expected earned income tax 
revenue and the difference between the two-year stimulus fund budget and the actual one-year expense. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

At the end of the fiscal year, the District had $78.9 million invested in land, buildings and equipment, with 
$78.8 million in governmental activities. Table 4 shows the fiscal 2009 balance compared to 2010. 

(Table 4) 
Capital Assets at June 30, Net of Depreciation 

(In Millions) 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment, vehicles 

Totals 

Governmental 
activities 

2009 2010 

$ 2.9 $ 2.9 
75.9 74.5 

1.4 1.4 

$ 80.2 $ 78.8 

Business-type 
activities 

2009 2010 

$ 0.0 $ 0.0 
0.0 0.0 
0.1 0.1 

$ 0.1 $ 0.1 

Total 
2009 2010 

$ 2.9 $ 2.9 
75.9 74.5 

1.5 1.5 

$ 80.3 $ 78.9 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

The overall total of capital assets decreased during 2009-10. The decrease is attributed to the calculated 
depreciation expense being greater than the addition of capital assets. A full appraisal was performed at the 
end of the 2006-07 fiscal year for insurance purposes and for fixed asset accounting and continues to be 
updated annually. 

Debt 

At June 30, 2010, the District had $47.3 million in bonds outstanding as compared to $42.6 million a year ago. 
Table 5 summarizes bonds outstanding. 

General Obligation Bonds: 
Series of 2004 GOB 
Series of 2005 GOB 
Series of 2006 GOB 
Series A of 2006 GOB 
Series of 2009 GOB 
Series A of 2010 GOB 

Total 

(Table 5) 
Outstanding Debt at Year End 

(In Millions) 

$ 

$ 

Governmental activities 
2009 2010 

2.3 $ 1.0 
4.9 4.6 

19.4 19.4 
8.1 3.8 
7.9 7.9 
0.0 10.6 

42.6 $ 47.3 

The District increased its bonds and notes by $4.7 million during 2010. While a significant amount of principal 
was paid down according to the debt schedules, new debt was acquired to finance the Central Manor 
renovation project. Moody's Investors Service has assigned an A 1 enhanced with a stable outlook and an A2 
underlying rating to the Penn Manor School District. The underlying A2 rating reflects the District's satisfactory 
financial operations, manageable debt position and modestly growing rural/agricultural tax base. The A 1 
enhanced rating is based upon the additional security for these bonds provided by the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania's Act 150 School District Intercept Program. The Act provides for undistributed state aid to be 
diverted to bondholders in the event of default. 
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For the Future 

PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

While Penn Manor School District appears to be strong financially, there are growing concerns regarding the 
economic outlook for the state and the local community. As the preceding information shows, the District 
maintains a healthy investment in fixed assets to support and provide comprehensive educational services. 
The District also considers future implications of current and ongoing financial obligations and prudently 
manages its financial assets. Strong academic performance is supported by reasonable and competitive per 
pupil spending. Balanced payment schedules on existing debt obligations should mean steady tax 
implications in the future. 

As we have seen throughout the nation, the economic situation is having an effect on the public sector. 
Challenges face many districts in Pennsylvania on a number of issues. With the passage of Act 1 of 2006, 
our District is faced with a cap on the amount of money that can be funded from a property tax increase. This 
cap is based upon a number calculated and provided by the Department of Education. While some 
exceptions may apply that would allow for a tax increase in excess of the index, the District will face pressure 
to keep tax increases at or below the allowable increase for the foreseeable future. Limited tax relief arrived 
in the 2008-09 tax year as the state was able to send school districts a portion of the gambling revenue to be 
used as an offset to real estate tax increases. In 2009-10, Penn Manor was fortunate to receive $1,292,427 
that offset property taxes due from taxpayers who had qualified for the homestead or farmstead exemptions. 
Other implications of the new law include earlier budgetary planning cycles and limits on the tax increases 
which can be levied without voter referendums. Penn Manor committed, for the 2010-11 budget cycle, to limit 
tax increases to the maximum adjusted index allowed by the state. While this commitment allows for greater 
flexibility in scheduling for the budgetary cycle, it has not yet been recommended for the 2011-12 budget 
cycle. 

Many districts face the common problem of escalating costs for employee benefits, particularly the retirement 
expenses of the PSERS system and, as in the case for our District, self-insured medical costs. Both of these 
costs are set by outside influences and, therefore, are not discretionary costs that can be controlled by District 
management. 

Recent reports of poor market performance of the invested PSERS funds have resulted in estimated 
increases to be much higher than previously in place. While the actual effect of the current market has yet to 
be determined, higher employer costs in the short term and dramatically higher rates in the future are being 
planned for by the District through the use of designated fund balance and integrated millage increases. This 
condition will have an alarming effect on school district budgeting across the Commonwealth and may lead to 
significant reductions in programs and services. The portion of funds designated in the District's fund balance 
to be used to contain the projected increases in the employer share of PSERS will not be enough to alleviate 
the problem, but it will allow the District to prudently plan for any potential changes. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(Unaudited) 

The costs of medical benefits will continue to have an effect on the District budget, as we continue to offer a 
competitive benefits package to employees through our self-insured plan. The District continues to implement 
various strategies to lower the pace of medical inflation. A Collective Bargaining Agreement is in effect for the 
2010-11 school year and has given some relief to these costs through employee contributions, but those 
contributions cover only a fraction of actual expenses. 

In conclusion, Penn Manor School District has committed itself to financial and educational excellence for 
many years. The District's system of budgeting and internal controls is well regarded and consistently 
followed. Continued diligence in all financial matters will be a key component of continued financial 
performance well into the future. 

Contacting the District's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it received. If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, please contact Christopher L. 
Johnston, Business Manager, at Penn Manor School District, PO Box 1001, Millersville, PA 17551 or visit our 
website at www.pennmanor.net. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2010 

ASSETS 

Governmental Business-type 
activities activities Total 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,752,564 $ 4,410 $ 2,756,974 
Investments 20,857,507 141,347 20,998,854 
Taxes receivable, net 1,528,330 1,528,330 
Due from other governments 2,170,330 2,170,330 
Other receivables 249,923 4,223 254,146 
Internal balances 170,736 (170,736) 

Inventories 63,026 63,026 

Total current assets 27,729,390 42,270 27,771,660 

Noncurrent assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents held for long-term purposes 505,059 505,059 
Investments held for long-term purposes 14,900,399 14,900,399 

Construction in progress 2,955,016 2,955,016 
Land 2,929,306 2,929,306 
Site improvements, net of accumulated depreciation 2,038,582 2,038,582 
Buildings and building improvements, 
net of accumulated depreciation 69,510,608 69,510,608 

Furniture, equipment and educational media, 
net of accumulated depreciation 1,197,396 111,707 1,309,103 

Vehicles, net of accumulated depreciation 185,733 185,733 
Long-term debt issuance costs, 
net of accumulated amortization 368,238 368,238 

Total noncurrent assets 94,590,337 111,707 94,702,044 

Total assets $ 122,319,727 $ 153,977 $ 122,473,704 

See notes to financial statements. 



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Governmental Business-type 
activities activities Total 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 1,802,628 $ 16,060 $ 1,818,688 

Accrued salaries and benefits 4,428,871 4,428,871 

Current portion of: 
Bonds payable 5,700,000 5,700,000 

Compensated absences 276,047 4,979 281,026 

Payroll deductions and with holdings 263,139 263,139 

Deferred revenues 7,628 37,344 44,972 

Other current liabilities 142,481 142,481 

Total current liabilities 12,620,794 58,383 12,679,177 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Bonds payable 42,313,270 42,313,270 

Accrued retirement costs 697,258 697,258 

Other postemployment benefits 278,853 278,853 

Long-term portion of compensated absences 1,658,668 44,814 1,703,482 

Total noncurrent liabilities 44,948,049 44,814 44,992,863 

Total liabilities 57,568,843 103,197 57,672,040 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 46,577,067 111,707 46,688,774 

Unrestricted (deficit) 18,173,817 (60,927) 18,112,890 

Total net assets 64,750,884 50,780 64,801,664 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 122,319,727 $ 153,977 $ 122,473,704 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Net revenue (expense) 
Program revenues and changes in net assets 

Operating 
Charges for grants and Governmental Business-type 

�enses services contributions activities activities Total 

Governmental activities: 
Instruction $ 38,792,946 $ 356,614 $ 8,657,510 $ (29,778,822) $ (29,778,822) 
Instructional student support 3,267,676 340,490 (2,927,186) (2,927,186) 
Administrative and financial support services 5,262,565 194,513 (5,068,052) (5,068,052) 

Operation and maintenance of plant services 5,208,802 75,346 98,498 (5,034,958) (5,034,958) 
Pupil transportation 2,833,817 1,632,710 (1,201,107) (1,201,107) 
Student activities 1,315,625 85,834 41,341 (1,188,450) (1,188,450) 

Community services 33,612 33,565 (47) (47) 
Capital outlay 1,568,788 (1,568,788) (1,568,788) 
Bank fees 493 (493) (493) 
Interest on long-term debt 1,803,040 1,163,394 (639,646) (639,646) 
Miscellaneous 83,233 (83,233) (83,233) 

Total governmental activities 60,170,597 517,794 12,162,021 (47,490,782) (47,490,782) 

Business-type activities, food services 2,409,659 1,381,868 987,033 $ (40,758) (40,758) 

Total primary government $ 62,580,256 $ 1,899,662 $ 13,149,054 (47,490,782) (40,758) (47,531,540) 

( continued) 
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General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, etc. 
Other 

Grants, subsidies and other nonrestricted 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers 

Total general revenues, special items 
and transfers 

Change in net assets 

Net assets: 
Beginning 

Ending 

PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Net revenue (expense) 
Program revenues and changes in net assets 

Operating 
Charges for grants and Governmental Business-type 

�enses services contributions activities activities Total 

$ 34,618,185 $ 34,618,185 
5,065,890 5,065,890 

10,897,966 10,897,966 
377,232 $ 397 377,629 
250,078 250,078 
(50,000) 50,000 

51,159,351 50,397 __ 5_1,209,748 

3,668,569 9,639 3,678,208 

61,082,315 41,141 61,123,456 

$ 64,750,884 $ 50,780 $ 64,801,664 

See notes to financial statements. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - JUNE 30, 2010 

ASSETS 

Major funds 
Nonmajor Total 

General Capital Capital Debt fund, governmental 
fund reserve projects service athletic fund funds 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,737,968 $ 505,059 $ 14,596 $ 3,257,623 
Investments 15,060,851 $ 5,762,967 14,900,399 $ 8,660 25,029 35,757,906 
Taxes receivable, net 1,528,330 1,528,330 
Due from: 

Other funds 179,651 3,515,462 3,695,113 
Other governments 2,170,330 2,170,330 

Other receivables, net 212,802 33,425 246,227 

$ 21,889,932 $ 9,311,854 $ 15,405,458 $ 8,660 $ 39,625 $ 46,655,529 

( continued) 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) - JUNE 30, 2010 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Major funds 
Nonmajor Total 

General Capital Capital Debt fund, governmental 
fund reserve projects service athletic fund funds 

Liabilities: 
Due to other funds $ 3,515,462 $ 3,889 $ 1,330 $ 3,520,681 

Accounts payable 1,484,725 47,349 270,548 $ 6 $ 6,915 1,809,543 

Accrued salaries and benefits 4,428,871 4,428,871 

Payroll deductions and withholdings 263,139 263,139 

Deferred revenues 542,712 542,712 

Total liabilities 10,234,909 51,238 271,878 6 6,915 10,564,946 

Fund balances: 
Unreserved: 

Designated 6,850,000 6,850,000 

Undesignated 4,805,023 9,260,616 15,133,580 8,654 32,710 29,240,583 

Total fund balances 11,655,023 _9,260,616 15,133,580 8,654 32,710 36,090,583 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances $ 21,889,932 $ 9,311,854 $ 15,405,458 $ 8,660 $ 39,625 $ 46,655,529 

See notes to financial statements. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Total fund balances, governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
net assets are different because: 

Capital assets and construction in progress used in 
governmental activities are not financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental 
funds. The cost of assets is $116,816,746 and the 
accumulated depreciation is $38,000,105. 

Property taxes receivable will be collected subsequent to 
year-end but are not available soon enough to pay for the 
current period's expenditures and, therefore, are deferred 
in the funds. 

Long-term liabilities, net of related assets, are not due and 
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported 
as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end 
consist of: 

Bonds payable 
Accrued interest on the bonds 
Unamortized: 

Long-term debt issuance costs 
Bond premium, net of discount 
Deferred loss on bond refunding 

Accrued retirement costs 
Other postemployment benefits 
Compensated absences 

Total net assets, governmental activities 

See notes to financial statements. 

$ (47,300,000) 
(135,567) 

368,238 
(1,004,785) 

291,515 
(697,258) 
(278,853) 

(1,934,714) 

$ 36,090,583 

78,816,641 

535,084 

(50,691,424) 

$ 64,750,884 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Major funds 
Nonmajor 

General Capital Capital Debt fund, 
fund reserve projects service athletic fund 

Revenues: 
Local sources: 

Real estate taxes $ 34,545,925 
Other taxes 5,065,890 
Investment income 305,180 $ 16,109 $ 55,813 $ $ 129 
Other revenue 1,761,287 67,571 

Total local sources 41,678,282 16,109 55,813 67,700 

State sources 19,165,999 
Federal sources 2,833,002 

Total revenues 63,677,283 16,109 55,813 1 67,700 

( continued) 

Total 
governmental 

funds 

$ 34,545,925 
5,065,890 

377,232 
1,828,858 

41,817,905 

19,165,999 
2,833,002 

63,816,906 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Major funds 
Nonmajor 

General Capital Capital Debt fund, 
fund reserve projects service athletic fund 

Expenditures: 
Instructional services $ 36,332,714 
Support services 16,343,552 
Noninstructional services 1,016,507 $ 67,354 
Capital outlay $ 1,292,569 $ 1,622,053 
Bank fees 493 
Debt service: 

Principal $ 5,895,000 
Interest 1,850,838 
Bond issue costs 25,500 

Refunds of prior years' receipts 233 

Total expenditures 53,693,006 1,292,569 1,648,046 7,745,838 67,354 

( continued) 

Total 
governmental 

funds 

$ 36,332,714 
16,343,552 

1,083,861 
2,914,622 

493 

5,895,000 
1,850,838 

25,500 
233 

64,446,813 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Major funds 
Nonmajor 

General Capital Capital Debt fund, 
fund reserve projects service athletic fund 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures $ 9,984,277 $ (1,276,460) $ (1,592,233) $ (7,745,837) $ 346 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Bond proceeds 10,570,000 
Bond discount (92,488) 
Swap termination fee (83,000) 
Interfund transfers (11,272,244) 3,515,462 (27,711) 7,754,493 (20,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (11,355,244) 3,515,462 10,449,801 7,754,493 (20,000) 

Net changes in fund balances (1,370,967) 2,239,002 8,857,568 8,656 (19,654) 

Fund balances: 
July 1, 2009 13,025,990 7,021,614 6,276,012 (2) 52,364 

June 30, 2010 $ 11,655,023 $ 9,260,616 $ 15,133,580 $ 8,654 $ 32,710 

See notes to financial statements. 

Total 
governmental 

funds 

$ (629,907) 

10,570,000 
(92,488) 
(83,000) 
(50,000) 

10,344,512 

9,714,605 

26,375,978 

$ 36,090,583 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Total net change in fund balances, governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as 
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, 
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by 
which depreciation expenses exceeds net capital outlays in the period. 
Depreciation expense, $(2,882,157); capital outlays expense 
including construction in progress, $1,455,574. 

Because some property taxes will not be collected for several 
months after the School District's fiscal year-end, they are not 
considered as available revenues in the governmental funds. 
Deferred tax revenues increased by this amount this year. 

(continued) 

$ 9,714,605 

(1,426,583) 

72,260 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 

YEA R  ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources 
to governmental funds. The repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental 
funds. However, this transaction has no effect on net assets. 
Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, 
premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first 
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized 
in the statement of activities. The effect of these transactions 
in the statement of activities is shown below: 

Issuance of debt: 
Bond proceeds 
Long-term debt issuance costs 
Bond discount 

Repayment of bond principal 
Amortization of: 

Long-term debt issuance costs 
Bond premium, net of discount 
Deferred loss 

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding 
bonds, whereas in the governmental fund, an interest 
expenditure is reported when due. 

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses 
(compensated absences, other postemployment benefits and 
retirement costs) are measured by the amounts incurred during 
the year. In the governmental fund, however, expenditures for 
these items are measured by the amount of financial resources 
used. This amount represents the difference between the 
amount incurred versus the amount used. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

See notes to financial statements. 

$ (10,570,000) 
25,500 
92,488 

5,895,000 

(90,221) 
223,441 
(97,313) $ (4,521,105) 

11,891 

(182,499) 

$ 3,668,569 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Due from other funds 
Other receivables 
Inventories 

Total current assets 

JUNE 30, 2010 

ASSETS 

Noncurrent assets, machinery and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total assets 

L IABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Current portion of compensated absences 
Deferred revenues 
Due to other funds 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities, noncurrent portion of compensated absences 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See notes to financial statements. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Food 
service 

4,410 
141,347 

60 
4,163 

63,026 

213,006 

111,707 

324,713 

16,060 
4,979 

37,344 
170,736 

229,119 

44,814 

273,933 

111,707 
(60,927) 

50,780 

$ 324,713 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND 

Operating revenues: 
Food service revenue 
Other operating revenue 

Tota! operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Supplies 
Depreciation 
Other operating expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Operating loss 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Earnings on investments 
Sources: 

State 
Federal 

Total nonoperating revenues 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Change in net assets before operating transfers 

Transfers in 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets: 
July 1, 2009 

June 30, 2010 

See notes to financial statements. 

Food service 

$ 1,314,445 
67,423 

$ 

1,381,868 

646,164 
298,603 

1,400,354 
13,789 
50,749 

2,409,659 

(1,027,791) 

397 

120,365 
866,668 

987,430 

(40,361) 

50,000 

9,639 

41,141 

50,780 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from users 
Cash payments to: 

Suppliers for goods and services 
Employees for services 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Operating transfers 
Sources: 

State 
Federal 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows used in capital and related financing activities, 
purchase of machinery and equipment 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Earnings on investments 
Withdrawals or redemptions from investment securities 
Purchase of investment securities 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net decrease in cash 

Cash: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

( continued) 

Food service 

$ 1,385,856 

$ 

(1,292,503) 
(927,283) 

(833,930) 

50,000 

120,365 
718,200 

888,565 

(8,513) 

397 
2,187,590 

(2,234,200) 

(46,213) 

(91 ) 

4,501 

4,410 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CASH F LOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities: 
Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Donated commodities 
Decrease in: 

Accounts receivable 
Inventories 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 
Deferred revenue 

Total adjustments 

Net cash used in operating activities 

See notes to financial statements. 

Food service 

$ (1,027,791) 

13,789 
148,468 

3,928 
2,100 

27,641 
(2,065) 

193,861 

$ (833,930) 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Other 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Due to other funds 
Accounts payable 
Other current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

JUNE 30, 2010 

Net assets, reserved for scholarships and endowments 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See notes to financial statements. 

Private 
purpose 

trust 

$ 68,705 

$ 68,705 

$ 68,705 

Agency 

$ 1,218 
115,911 

4,817 

$ 121,946 

$ 3,756 
25,811 
92,379 

30 



PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Private 
purpose 

trust 

Additions: 
Gifts and contributions $ 3,000 
Earnings and investments 126 

3,126 

Deduction, scholarships awarded (4,575) 

Change in net assets (1,449) 

Net assets: 
July 1, 2009 70,154 

June 30, 2010 $ 68,705 

See notes to financial statements. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Actual final budget 

Budget amounts budgetary positive 
Original Final basis (negative) 

Revenues: 
Local sources: 

Real estate taxes $ 34,416,850 $ 34,416,850 $ 34,545,925 $ 129,075 

Other taxes 5,457,064 5,457,064 5,065,890 (391,174) 

Investment income 338,776 338 ,776 305,180 (33,596) 

Other revenue 1,518,887 1,518,887 1, 761,287 242,400 

Total local sources 41,731,577 41,731,577 41,678,282 (53,295) 

State sources 21,038,300 21,038,300 19,165,999 (1,872,301) 

Federal sources 767,113 2,257,660 2,833,002 575,342 

Total revenues 63,536,990 65,027,537 63,677,283 (1,350,254) 

Expenditures: 
I nstructional services: 

Regular programs 28,231,272 27,934,920 27,448,281 486,639 

Special programs 6,678,562 7 ,507,896 6 ,937,292 570,604 

Vocational programs 1,788,462 1, 743,299 1,739,021 4,278 

Other instructional programs 284,578 237,451 207,221 30,230 

Adult education programs 899 899 

Support services: 
Pupil personnel 1,892,468 1,938,889 1,836,491 102,398 

I nstructional staff 852,668 819,476 791,117 28,359 

Administrative 3,708,226 3,596,291 3,557,917 38,374 

Pupil health 645,979 582,122 571,879 10,243 
Business 857,051 791,543 782,709 8,834 

Operation and maintenance of plant 5,760,327 5,115,360 5,083,077 32,283 

Student transportation 2,833,095 2,806,608 2 ,805,889 719 

Central and other support 842,804 866,683 859,337 7,346 
Other support services 52,946 55,136 55,136 

( continued) 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Actual final budget 

Budget amounts budgetary positive 
Ori9inal Final basis (ne9ative) 

Expenditures (continued) : 
Operation of noninstructional services: 

Student activities $ 1 ,028,202 $ 996,053 $ 982,942 $ 1 3, 1 1 1  
Community services 27,697 33,565 33,565 

Debt service (principal and interest) 7,745,838 7,745,837 7,745,837 

Total expenditures 63,230,1 75 62,772,028 61 ,438,61 0  1 ,333,41 8  

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 306,81 5  2,255,509 2,238,673 ( 1 6,836) 

Other financing uses: 
Refund of prior year receipts (233) (233) 
Swap termination fee (83,000) (83,000) 
I nterfund transfers ( 1 ,530,000) (3,545,462) (3,526,407) 1 9,055 
Budgetary reserve ( 1 50,000) 

Total other financing uses (1 ,680,000) (3,628,695) (3,609,640) 1 9,055 

Net changes in fund balances ( 1 ,373,1 85) ( 1 ,373, 1 86) ( 1 ,370,967) 2,2 1 9  

Fund balances: 
July 1 , 2009 1 1 ,685,597 1 1 ,685,597 1 3,025,990 1 ,340,393 

June 30, 201 0  $ 1 0,3 1 2,41 2  $ 1 0,31 2,4 1 1 $ 1 1 ,655,023 $ 1 ,342,61 2  

See notes to financial statements. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies: 

Penn Manor School District (the School District), located in Lancaster County, Pennsylvania, provides a 
full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels kindergarten through 12 to students living 
in Conestoga Township, Manor Township, Martic Township, the Borough of Millersville and Pequea 
Township. These include regular, advanced academic and vocational education programs and special 
education programs for gifted and physically and mentally challenged children. The governing body of 
the School District is a board of nine school directors who are each elected for a four-year term. The 
daily operation and management of the School District is carried out by the administrative staff of the 
School District, headed by the Superintendent of Schools who is appointed by the Board of School 
Directors. The School District is comprised of seven elementary schools, two middle schools and one 
high school, serving 5,300 students. 

The accounting policies of the School District conform with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the 
School District's significant accounting policies. 

Reporting entity: 

Consistent with guidance contained in Statement No. 14 of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GAS B) , The Financial Reporting Entity ,  the criteria used by the School District to evaluate the 
possible inclusion of related entities (authorities, boards, councils, etc. ) within its reporting entity are 
financial accountability and the nature and significance of the relationship. I n determining financial 
accountability in a given case, the School District reviews the applicability of the following criteria: 

The School District is financially accountable for: 

1. Organizations that make up its legal entity. 

2. Legally separate organizations if School District officials appoint a voting majority of the 
organization's governing body and the School District is able to impose its will on the 
organization or if there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits 
to, or impose specific burdens on, the School District as defined below. 

Impose its will - If the School District can significantly influence the programs, projects or 
activities of, or the level of services performed or provided by, the organization. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued): 

Reporting entity (continued):  

Financial benefit or burden - I f  the School District (1) is entitled to the organization's 
resources or (2) is lega"y obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to finance the 
deficits of, or provide support to, the organization or (3) is obligated in some manner for the 
debt of the organization. 

3. Organizations that are fiscally dependent on the School District. Fiscal dependency is 
established if the organization is unable to adopt its own budget, levy taxes or set rates or 
charges or issue bonded debt without the approval of the School District. 

Based on the foregoing criteria, no additional entities are included in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

Basis of presentation, fund accounting: 

The accounts of the School District are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of 
which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for 
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts comprising each fund's assets, liabilities, fund equity, 
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual 
funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent. 

Basis of presentation, financial statements: 

Government-wide financial statements 

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the School 
District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary government, 
except for fiduciary funds. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated 
from these financial statements. The statements distinguish between those activities of the 
School District that are governmental and those that are considered business-type activities. 

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement 
focus. This is the same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund financial 
statements but differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are 
prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation with brief 
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the 
statements for governmental funds. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued): 

Basis of presentation, financial statements (continued): 

Government-wide financial statements (continued) 

The government-wide statement of activities presents direct expenses and program revenues for 
each function or program of the School District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are 
those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department, and therefore, 
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the 
recipient of the goods or services offered by the program and grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues 
which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the School 
District, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program 
revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws on 
the general revenues of the School District. 

Fund financial statements 

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds. Major 
individual governmental and proprietary funds are reported in separate columns with composite 
columns for nonmajor funds. Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type. 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its 
measurement focus. All governmental fund types are accounted for using a flow of current 
financial resources measurement focus. The financial statements for governmental funds are a 
balance sheet, which generally includes only current assets and current liabilities, and a 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances, which reports on the 
sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other 
financing uses) of current financial resources. 

All proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. 
With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these 
funds are included in the statement of net assets. The statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in fund net assets presents increases (i.e. , revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in 
net assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the School District 
finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities. 

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued): 

Basis of presentation, financial statements (continued): 

Fund financial statements (continued) 

The School District reports the following major government funds: 

General fund - The general fund is the principal operating fund of the School District. It is used 
to account for all current financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

Capital reserve fund - This fund is used to account for transfers from other funds and related 
investment earnings for capital outlays not accounted for in another fund. 

Capital projects fund - This fund is used to account for financial resources related to general 
fixed asset acquisitions, construction and improvements. 

Debt service fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and 
payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest. This fund includes the 2004 
Settlement Fund, the 2004 Sinking Fund, the 2005 Settlement Fund, the 2005 Sinking Fund, 
the 2009 Sinking Fund, the 2010AB Settlement Fund and the 2010A Sinking Fund. 

The School District reports the following enterprise fund: 

Food service fund - This fund accounts for the revenues, food purchases and other costs and 
expenses of providing meals to students during the school year. 

The School District accounts for assets held by the School District in a trustee capacity in a private 
purpose trust fund. This fund accounts for receipts and disbursement of monies contributed to 
the School District for scholarships and memorials. 

The agency fund is used to account for assets held by the School District as agent for others. 
Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 
This fund represents the student activities fund. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) : 

Basis of presentation, financial statements (continued): 

Fund financial statements (continued) 

Additionally, the School District reports the following nonmajor governmental funds: 

Athletic fund - This fund accounts for gate receipts and other revenues from athletic events and 
costs of the athletic program. 

Basis of accounting: 

Basis of accounting represents the methodology utilized in the recognition of revenues and 
expenditures or expenses reported in the financial statements. The accounting and reporting 
treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 

Government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements measure and report all assets, 
liabilities, revenues, expenses, gains and losses using the economic resources measurement focus 
and accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, except for postemployment healthcare benefits (Note 15) and the net 
unrealized net loss resulting from derivatives (Note 10), regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar 
items are recognized as revenues in the year in which the eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989 
generally are followed for government-wide and proprietary activity financial statements to the extent 
that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector 
guidance for these financial statements, subject to this same limitation. The School District has 
elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) : 

Basis of accounting (continued):  

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed by the governmental funds. Under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both 
measurable and available. The term available means collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period, which for the School District is 
considered to be 60 days after fiscal year-end. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting 
period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except debt service and compensated 
absence payments which are recognized when due. 

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered susceptible to 
accrual at year-end: property taxes, tuition, grants and entitlements, student fees and interest on 
investments. 

Current property taxes measurable at June 30, 2010, and which are not intended to finance 2009-
2010 school year operations, have been recorded as deferred revenues. Delinquent property taxes 
measurable and available (received within 60 days) are recognized as revenue at year-end. 

Revenues, exchange and nonexchange transactions 

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially 
equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. 

Nonexchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal 
value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, 
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. 
Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all 
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year in which the resources 
are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in 
which the School District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and 
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the School District on a 
reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from exchange and nonexchange 
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) : 

Budgetary data: 

Penn Manor School District follows the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data 
reflected in the financial statements: 

a. Prior to May 31, management submits to the School Board a proposed operating budget for 
the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them for the general fund. 

b. A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

c. Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

d. Legal budgetary control is maintained by the School Board at the departmental level. 
Transfers between departments, whether between funds or within a fund or revisions that 
alters the total revenues and expenditures of any fund, must be approved by the Board. 

e. Budgetary data is included in the School District's management information system and is 
employed as a management control device during the year. 

f. Unused appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year; however, the School District 
increases the subsequent year's appropriation by an amount equal to outstanding 
encumbrances and reserves a portion of the fund balance in a like amount. There were no 
outstanding encumbrances at June 30, 2010. 

g. The budget for the general fund is adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting, except 
that a budgetary reserve is provided. 

h. For budgetary purposes the District includes debt service payments (principal and interest) in 
the general fund. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles these 
amounts are shown as transfers to the debt service fund on the fund level financial 
statements. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) : 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and include investments with maturities of three months or less when 
purchased. 

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand and interest-bearing bank deposits which 
approximates fair value. 

Investments: 

Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is equal to cost/principal amounts because those are 
the values at which those investments could be readily redeemed. 

Taxes receivable and deferred tax revenues, governmental funds: 

The portion of delinquent real estate taxes receivable that is expected to be received within 60 days of 
June 30 is recorded as revenue in the current year. The remaining amount of those and other tax 
receivables is recorded as deferred tax revenues in the fund financial statements. 

Inventories: 

There is no inventory recorded in the general fund. Items such as office supplies and cleaning 
materials are expensed as incurred. 

Inventories in the food service fund represent the cost, using the first-in, first out (FIFO) method, of 
food and supplies on hand at June 30, 2010, including the value of commodities donated by the 
federal government. Any unused commodities donated by the federal government are reported as 
deferred revenue until used. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) : 

Capital assets and depreciation: 

The School District's property, plant and equipment with useful lives of more than one year are stated 
at historical cost (or estimated historical cost) and are comprehensively reported in the government
wide financial statements. Proprietary fund capital assets are also reported in their fund financial 
statements. Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated. The School District 
generally capitalizes assets with a cost of $5,000 or more as purchase and construction outlays 
occur. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially 
extend useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method 
over their estimated useful lives. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable 
accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and the resulting gain or loss is 
recorded in operations. Estimated historical costs of capital assets were derived, when information 
supporting historical costs was not obtainable, by adjusting replacement cost back to the estimated 
year of acquisition. Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are generally as follows: 

Assets 

School buildings 
Building improvements 
Site improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Vehicles 

Long-term obligations: 

Years 

40 
20 
20 

5 to 12 
12 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums 
and discounts, as well as issuance costs and refunding losses, are deferred and amortized over the 
life of the bonds using the straight-line method. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, 
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is 
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other 
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as other financing uses. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) :  

Compensated absences: 

The School District accrues vacation leave and retirement costs as liabilities as the benefits are 
earned by the employees if it is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the 
benefits through paid time off or some other means. Professional employees with qualifying years of 
service receive a lump-sum retirement bonus according to either the collective bargaining 
agreement or Act 93 agreement. 

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. The liability includes the 
employees who are currently eligible to receive severance benefits and those the School District has 
identified as probable of receiving payment in the future. The amount is based on accumulated sick 
leave and employees' wage rates at year-end, taking into consideration any limits specified in the 
School District's severance policy. For governmental funds, that portion of unpaid compensated 
absences that is expected to be paid using expendable, available resources is reported as an 
expenditure in the fund from which the individual earning the leave is paid and a corresponding 
liability is reflected. 

Additional amounts are accrued for salary-related payments associated with the payment of 
compensated absences using the rates in effect at the balance sheet date. The School District has 
accrued the employer's share of Social Security and Medicare taxes. 

Encumbrances: 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration and project control in the general fund. 
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances because they 
do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. As of June 30, 2010, the School District had no 
encumbrances. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 0 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) : 

Pension plan: 

Substantially all full-time and part-time employees of the School District participate in a cost-sharing, 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The School District recognizes annual pension 
expenditures or expenses equal to its contractually required contributions, subject to the modified 
accrual basis of accounting in the governmental funds. (That is, if contributions from governmental 
funds are required but not made, the difference would not be reported as an expenditure until 
payable with expendable, available financial resources.) The School District made all required 
contributions for the year ended June 30, 201 0  and has recognized them as expenditures and 
expenses in the governmental and proprietary funds, respectively. 

Interfund activity: 

Exchange transactions between governmental funds are eliminated on the government-wide 
statements. 

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as 
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another 
without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are 
reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and as nonoperating 
revenues/expenses in proprietary funds. 

Fund equity: 

Unreserved fund balances for governmental fund types represent the amount available for budgeting 
future operations. Reserved fund balances for governmental fund types represent the amounts that 
have been identified for a specified expenditure. Net assets of the proprietary fund are available for 
future operations or distribution. 

Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 0 

1 .  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued): 

Derivatives: 

Up-front payments from derivatives are recorded as revenue when received. Unrealized gains or 
losses are recorded as cash payments are received or made. 

Extraordinary and special items: 

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in 
occurrence. There were no extraordinary items for the year ended June 30, 201 0 . 

Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of the Board of Education and that 
are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. There were no special items for the year 
ended June 30, 201 0 . 

2. Cash, cash equivalents and investments: 

Under Section 440. 1 of the Public School Code of 1 949, as amended, the School District is permitted to 
invest its monies as follows: 

Obligations of (a) the United States of America or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by 
the full faith and credit of the United States of America, (b) the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or 
any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the Commonwealth or (c) 
any political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or 
instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision. 

Deposits in savings accounts or time deposits or share accounts of institutions insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation to the extent that such accounts are so insured and, for any amounts 
above the insured maximum, provided that approved collateral as provided by law is pledged by the 
depository. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 ,  201 0  

2. Cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued) : 

The reconciliation of deposits to the financial statements is as follows: 

Uninsured amount 
Plus: 

Insured by Federal Depository Insurance 
Petty cash 

Less, outstanding checks 

Total 

Government activities: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Held for long-term purposes 

Business-type activities 
Fiduciary funds, agency 

Total 

Custodial credit risk, deposits: 

$ 3 , 1 52,674 

264 ,596 
350 

( 1 54 , 369) 

$ 3 ,263,251 

$ 2 , 752, 564 
505, 059 

4 ,41 0 
1 , 2 1 8  

$ 3 ,263 ,251  

Custodial credit risk is  the risk that, in  the event of a counterparty failure, the School District's deposits 
may not be returned to it. The District's policy requires deposits in savings accounts or time deposits 
or share accounts of institutions to be insured or covered by approved collateral as provided by law. 
As of June 30, 201 0 , $3 , 1 52,674 of the District's bank balance of $3 ,41 7,270 was uninsured, with 
collateral held by the pledging bank's trust department according to Act 72 . This collateral is not in 
the District's name. 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 0  

2. Cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued): 

Investments: 

Investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the 
level of risk associated with certain investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the 
value of investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect 
account balances and the amounts reported in the statement of net assets. As of June 30, 201 0 , 
the District had the following investments: 

Investment 

PA School District Liquid Asset Fund, certificates of 
deposit (unrated/backed by AAAm rated collateral) 

Goldman Sachs Sq Treasury Fund (rated AAA) 
PA Local Government Investment Trust (rated AAAm) 
PA School District MAX (rated AAAm) 

Cash equivalents included above 

Total 

Maturities 

1 to 1 2  months 
None 
None 
None 

The reconciliation of investments to the financial statements is as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Investments 
Held for long-term purposes 

Business-type activities 
Fiduciary funds: 

Private purpose trust 
Agency 

Total 

Fair value 

$ 1 6 , 500,880 
8 ,660 

6 , 1 25, 794 
1 3 , 953, 594 

36 ,588 ,928 
(505,059) 

$ 36,083, 869 

$ 20, 857,507 
1 4 , 900,399 

1 4 1 ,347 

68 , 705 
1 1 5 , 9 1 1 

$ 36, 083,869 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 0  

2. Cash and investments (continued): 

Interest rate risk: 

The District has a formal investment policy that permits investments as authorized by law. The policy 
does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising 
from increasing interest rates. 

Credit risk: 

The District's investment policy requires that its investment companies be registered under the 
Investment Company Act of 1 940 with shares registered under the Securities Act of 1 933.  In 
addition, the investment companies used by the District must be rated in the highest category by a 
nationally recognized rating agency. 

3. Real estate taxes: 

Based upon assessments provided by the County, the School District bills and collects its own property 
taxes. The School District tax rate for the year ended June 30, 201 0  was 1 5 .9 1  mills ($ 1 5 .9 1  per $1 ,000 
of assessed valuation) as levied by the Board of School Directors. The schedule for real estate taxes 
levied for each fiscal year is as follows: 

July 1 
July 1 - September 2 
September 3 - October 3 1  
November 1 - December 3 1  
January 1 

Levy date 
2% discount period 
F ace payment period 
1 0% penalty period 
Lien date 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20 1 0  

4. Taxes receivable and deferred revenue: 

5. 

The School District, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, recognized the 
delinquent and unpaid taxes receivable reduced by an allowance for uncollectible taxes as determined 
by the administration. A portion of the receivable amount, which was measurable and available within 
60 days, was recognized as revenue and the balance deferred in the fund financial statement. The 
balances at June 30, 201 0 are as follows: 

Allowance Net 
Gross for estimated Deferred 
taxes uncollectible to be Tax revenue tax 

receivable taxes collectible recognized revenue 

Real estate $ 698,457 $ 46,682 $ 651,775 $ 119,556 $ 532,219 

Earned income taxes 795,784 795,784 795,784 

Per capita and occupation 286,468 283,603 2,865 2,865 

Transfer tax 77,906 77,906 77,906 

$ 1,858,615 $ 330,285 $ 1,528,330 $ 993,246 $ 535,084 

Interfund accounts: 

Individual fund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 201 0 were as follows: 

Due from Due to 
other funds other funds 

General fund $ 1 79 ,651  $ 3 ,5 1 5 ,462 
Special revenue: 

Capital reserve fund 3 ,5 1 5 ,462 3 ,889 
Capital projects fund 1 ,330 

Enterprise food service 60 1 70 ,736 
Student activities fund 3 ,756 

$ 3 ,695, 1 73 $ 3 ,695, 1 73 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,  201 0  

5. Interfund accounts (continued) : 

Major funds: 
General fund 
Debt service fund 
Capital reserve fund 
Capital projects fund 
Enterprise food service 

Nonmajor, Athletic fund 

6. Due from other governments: 

Transfers 
to 

other funds 

$ 7 ,754,493 
3 ,5 1 5 ,462 

50,000 

$ 1 1 , 3 1 9 , 955 

Transfers 
from 

other funds 

$ 1 1 ,272 ,244 

27, 7 1 1 

20,000 

$ 1 1 , 3 1 9 , 955 

Amounts due from other governments represent receivables for revenues earned by the School District. 
At June 30, 201 0 , the following amounts are due from other governmental units: 

General fund 

Federal grants $ 455,222 
State subsidy : 

Rental 1 , 0 1 0 , 592 
Retirement 26 1 , 936 
Social Security 1 83 ,936 
Health services 1 04 ,928 

Grants and programs: 
State 37, 7 1 2 
Local 1 1 6 , 004 

$ 2 , 1 70, 330 
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7. 

PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 0 

Changes in capital assets: 

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 201 0  is as follows: 

Beginning Ending 

baiance i ncreases Decreases balance 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 2 ,929, 306 $ 2,929, 306 

Construction in prog ress 8 , 1 65,67 1 $ 1 , 0 1 6, 790 $ 6,227,445 2,955 , 0 1 6  

Total assets not being depreciated 1 1 , 094, 977 1 , 0 1 6, 790 6 , 227 ,445 5,884,322 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Site i m provements 3,872,468 3 ,872,468 

Buildings and bui lding im provements 98,01 5,463 6,507,606 1 04, 523,069 

Furniture, equipment and educational media 1 ,853, 605 1 58, 623 2 ,01 2,228 

Vehicles 524, 659 524,659 

Total assets being depreciated 1 04 ,266, 1 95 6,666,229 1 1 0, 932,424 

Accum ulated depreciation: 

Site i m provements 1 , 567, 004 266, 882 1 ,833, 886 

Buildings and bui lding i m provements 32,568, 766 2,443, 695 35,01 2,461 

Furniture and equipment 678,641 1 36, 1 91 8 1 4 , 832 

Vehicles 303, 537 35, 389 338, 926 

Total accum ulated depreciation 35, 1 1 7 , 948 2 ,882, 1 57 38,000, 1 05 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 69, 1 48,247 3,784, 072 72,932,31 9 

Governmental activities, capital assets, net $ 80,243, 224 $ 4,800, 862 $ 6, 227, 445 $ 78,8 1 6,641 

5 1  



PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEA R  ENDED JUNE 30, 20 1 0  

7. Changes in capital assets (continued) : 

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30,  201 0  is as follows: 

Beg inn ing 
balance I ncreases Decreases 

Business-type activit ies: 
Capital assets being depreciated , 

equ ipment $ 64 1 , 395 $ 8 ,5 1 3 

Less accumulated depreciation 
for equ ipment 524 ,41 2 1 3 , 789 

Business-type activities, capital assets, net $ 1 1 6 ,983 $ (5 ,276) 

Depreciation expenses were charged to governmental functions as follows: 

Instruction 
Instructional student support 
Administration and financial services 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
Pupil transportation 
Student activities 

Ending 
balance 

$ 649 ,908 

538,201 

$ 1 1 1 ,707 

$ 2 ,41 7 , 557 
4 ,651  
7 ,297 

1 59 ,84 1  
26,689 

266 , 1 22 

$ 2 , 882 , 1 57 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 0  

8.  Deferred revenues: 

Deferred revenues at June 30, 201 0  consist of the following: 

General Proprietary 
fund fund 

Deferred taxes $ 535, 084 
Deferred grant program revenue 7 ,628 
Prepaid ticket sales $ 22, 927 
Unused donated commodities 1 4 ,4 1 7  

$ 542, 7 1 2  $ 37, 344 

Total 

$ 535,084 
7 ,628 

22,927 
1 4 ,4 1 7  

$ 580, 056 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,  201 0 

9. General long-term debt: 

General obligation bonds: 

The School District issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for major capital improvements. 
These bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the School District. 
Currently, the School District has six general obligation bond series with interest rates and 
outstanding principal amounts at June 30, 20 1 0  as follows: 

Issue 

Series of 2004 GOB 
Series of 2005 GOB 
Series of 2006 GOB 
Series A of 2006 GOB 
Series of 2009 GOB 
Series A of 2010 GOB 

Deferred loss 
Bond prem ium,  net of d iscount 

Total long-term debt 
Less current portion 

Current debt issuance: 

Final  maturity date 

June 1, 2011 

June 1, 2012 

June 1, 2016 

June 1, 2014 

June 1, 2016 

June 1, 2018 

I nterest rate or yield 

3 .25% 
3 .00% - 4 .00% 

3 .70% - 5.00% 

3 .60% - 5.00% 

2 .50% - 5.00% 

3 .61% - 4 .21% 

Amount 

$ 1,000,000 

4,595,000 

19,415,000 

3,855,000 

7,865,000 

10,570,000 

47,300,000 

(291,515) 

1,004,785 

48,013,270 

5,700,000 

$ 42,313,270 

On June 23, 20 1 0 , the School District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 201 0 for 
$ 1 0 ,570,000. The proceeds of the bond will be used to provide funds to finance various capital 
projects of the School District and pay the costs of issuing the bonds. Interest ranging from 3 .61  % to 
4 .21  % is payable semiannually on June 1 and December 1 each year. Bonds in various principal 
amounts will mature until June 201 8 , the scheduled date of final redemption. The bonds are "Build 
America Bonds" and were part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The 
School District has elected to receive directly subsidy payments from the United States Treasury. 
Through June 1 ,  20 1 8 , the total of the subsidy payments the School District will receive is 
$ 1 , 045, 938. 
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9. General long-term debt (continued): 

Long-term obligation activity:  

Long-term obligation activity for governmental activities can be summarized as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
balance Increases Decreases balance 

General obligation bonds $ 42,625,000 $ 1 0 , 570,000 $ 5 ,895,000 $ 47 ,300 ,000 
Accrued retirement cost 749,3 1 1 52,053 697,258 
Estimated liability for 

compensated absences 1 , 84 1 ,024 93,690 1 , 934 ,7 14  

$ 45,21 5,335 $ 1 0 , 663,690 $ 5,947 , 053 $ 49,93 1 ,972 

Letter of credit: 

At June 30, 20 1 0 , the School District has letters of credit with a local bank for $529,454 and $275 ,8 1 7 
which related to turf field project and road improvements. The second letter of credit was entered 
into by the School District on August 3 1 , 2009. Both letters of credit are secured by property of the 
School District. 
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9. General long-term debt (continued) : 

1 0. 

Debt service requirements: 

The annual requirements of the School District's debt service as adjusted for Series B of 201 0 issued 
July 8 ,  20 1 0  are listed below. The amounts shown exclude the interest subsidy for the Series A of 
201 0 "Build America Bonds." 

Year ending 
June 30, Principal Interest Total 

201 1 $ 5 ,700,000 $ 1 , 904 , 389 $ 7, 604, 389 
201 2  5 , 9 1 0 ,000 1 , 734 , 8 1 4  7 ,644, 8 1 4  
201 3  6 ,080,000 1 , 567,229 7 ,647,229 
20 1 4  6 ,3 1 0 , 000 1 , 329,729 7 ,639,729 
201 5  6,495,000 1 , 050,449 7 ,545 ,449 

201 6-201 8  1 6 ,800 ,000 1 ,254,2 1 2  1 8 , 054 ,2 1 2 

$ 47,295,000 $ 8 ,840 , 822 $ 56 , 1 35, 822 

Derivatives: 

In May 2004 , the School District entered into an interest rate management plan (swaption) that provided 
the School District an up-front payment of $500,000 that was recorded as revenue in 2004. The 
swaption gave the counterparty the option to make the School District enter into a pay-variable, receive
fixed interest rate swap. If the option is exercised, a portion of the School District's outstanding General 
Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2006 and a portion of the School District's outstanding General 
Obligation Bonds, Series of 2009 would convert to a synthetic variable rate. 

On June 4 ,  20 1 0 , the District terminated the swaption and, as a result, paid an $83,000 termination fee 
payable to Royal Bank of Canada. 
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1 1 .  Operating leases: 

PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

On September 11, 1995, the School District entered into a 40-year operating lease with Millersville 
University of the Pennsylvania State System of Higher Education. The School District agreed to 
construct and maintain a two-tier parking garage on land owned by Millersville University. In lieu of 
rent, the School District agreed to allow Millersville University primary use of the lower tier of the parking 
garage. 

On December 11, 1995, the School District entered into a 40-year operating lease with Millersville 
University. The School District agreed to lease approximately 2.32 acres of land, referred to as the 
"Athletic Field," to Millersville University. In lieu of rent, Millersville University agreed to lease to the 
School District .34 acres of land, referred to as the "Parking Lot." 

Lease Rental Debt, Series of 1998 dated October 7 ,  1998, was issued by the Lancaster County 
Vocational Technical School Authority (the Authority) to advance refund the Authority's Series of 1995 
Lease Revenue Bonds. The 1998 bonds were issued to provide funds for the upgrading and 
modernization of the facilities of the Lancaster County Career and Technical Center. The Lancaster 
County Career and Technical Center and the 16-member school districts have entered into a lease 
agreement with the Authority and each school district paid its proportionate share of the lease rentals in 
order to fund the Series of 1998 debt. The operating lease with the Authority expired as of June 30, 
2010. 

1 2. Risk management: 

Property and liability :  

For losses incurred prior to July 1,  1999 and subsequent to June 30, 2002, the School District joined 
together with other school districts in the area to form the Lancaster-Lebanon Public Schools 
Insurance Pool (the Pool), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk 
management and insurance program for 13-member school districts, the Lancaster-Lebanon 
Intermediate Unit, the Lancaster County Academy and the Lancaster County Career and Technical 
Center. This agreement states that the School District pays an annual premium to the Pool for the 
purpose of seeking the prevention or lessening of casualty losses to members from injuries to 
persons or properties which might result in claims being made against members and to pool the 
insurance risks, reserves, claims and losses and providing self-insurance and reinsurance. It is the 
intent of the members of the Pool that the Pool will utilize funds contributed by the members to 
provide self-insurance and reimbursement to the members for certain losses, to defend and protect 
each member of the Pool in accordance with the agreement against certain liabilities and losses and 
to purchase excess and aggregate stop-loss insurance for claims greater than $100,000 per 
occurrence. 
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1 2. Risk management (continued): 

Property and liability (continued):  

As of June 30, 20 1 0 , the School District is not aware of any additional assessments relating to the 
Pool. 

Hospitalization: 

The School District has a self-insured hospitalization plan with Health Assurance Management 
Services Company, the claims administrator, who processes and pays the claims. For the year 
ended June 30, 201 0 , the School District was limited in liability for claims to $ 1 25,000 per individual 
and $7,459,445 in total for the Point of Service Plan. A liability for claims incurred prior to June 30, 
201 0  and paid subsequently is recorded in the amount of $477,054 in accounts payable in the 
general fund. 

Changes in the School District's claims liability amount in fiscal years 2009 and 201 0  were: 

2008-2009 
2009-201 0  

Vision fund: 

Beginning of 
fiscal year 

liability 

$ 325 , 1 42 
490 ,6 1 3  

Current year 
claims and 
changes in 
estimates 

$ 4 , 859, 508 
4 , 793, 972 

Balance 
Claims at fiscal 

payment year-end 

$ 4 ,694, 037 $ 490 ,6 1 3  
4 ,807 ,531  477,054 

The School District administers a vision fund which is reflected in the general fund. The plan 
reimburses for professional eye examinations and the cost of prescription glasses and contacts. 
Eligible expenses in accordance with the plan are those incurred by either an employee or his/her 
dependents. 
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1 2. Risk management (continued) : 

Vision fund (continued): 

The plan requires submission of receipted invoices for eligible services and operates on a fiscal year 
from July 1 to June 30. Payment by the School District is made monthly and items submitted by the 
end of each month will be reimbursed by the 15th of the following month. In order to be eligible for 
payment, bills incurred must be less than six months old. Payment for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2010 is limited to $190 per eligible employee. An eligible employee may carry over any unused 
amount in his/her account to the following year to a maximum usage of $380. For the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2010, payment is limited to $200 per year and the carryover is limited to a 
maximum of $400. 

Workers'  compensation: 

The School District is participating in the Lancaster-Lebanon Public Schools Workers' Compensation 
Fund which is a cooperative voluntary trust arrangement for 19-member school districts and the 
Lancaster-Lebanon Intermediate Unit. This agreement states that the School District pays an 
annual premium to the Fund for the purpose of seeking prevention or lessening of claims due to 
injuries of employees of the members and pooling workers' compensation and occupational disease 
insurance risks, reserves, claims and losses and providing self-insurance and reinsurance thereof. 
It is the intent of the members of the Fund that the Fund will utilize funds contributed by the 
members, which shall be held in trust by the Fund, to provide self-insurance and reimbursement to 
the members for their obligations to pay compensation as required under the Workers' 
Compensation Act and the Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act and to purchase excess and 
aggregate insurance. As of June 30, 2010, the School District is not aware of any additional 
assessments relating to the Fund. 

Unemployment compensation: 

The School District has elected to self-insure for unemployment compensation rather than contribute 
to the state fund. Transactions relating to this plan are reflected in the general fund. 

Other risks: 

The School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft and destruction of assets, errors 
and omissions and natural disasters. The School District has purchased various insurance policies 
to safeguard its assets from risk of loss. During the year ended June 30, 2010 and the two previous 
fiscal years, no settlements exceeded insurance coverage. 
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1 3. Defined benefit pension plan: 

Plan description: 

The School District contributes to a governmental cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit 
pension plan administered by Pennsylvania Public School Employees' Retirement System (PSERS). 
Benefit provisions of the plan are established under the provisions of the Pennsylvania Public 
School Employees' Retirement Code (the Code) and may be amended by an act of the 
Pennsylvania State Legislature. The plan provides retirement , disability and death benefits, 
legislatively mandated ad hoc cost-of-living adjustments and healthcare insurance premium 
assistance to qualifying plan members and beneficiaries. It also provides for refunds of a member's 
accumulated contribution upon termination of a member's employment in the public school sector. 
PSERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements for the plan. 
That report may be obtained by writing to PSERS, P. O. Box 1 25 ,  Harrisburg, PA 1 7 1 08-0 1 25. This 
publication is also available on the PSERS website at 
www.psers.state.pa.us/publications/cafr/index.htm. 

Funding policy: 

The contribution policy is set by the Code and requires contributions by active employees, by 
participating employers and the Commonwealth. Plan members may belong to two membership 
classes. Class TC and Class TO are available to plan members. Active members who joined the 
plan before July 22, 1 983 are required to contribute 5.25% of their compensation if they are in Class 
TC or 6 .5% for Class TO. Members who joined on or after July 22, 1 983 and were active or inactive 
as of July 1 , 2001 are required to contribute 6.25% for Class TC or 7 .5% for Class TO. Members 
who joined the plan after June 30, 200 1 are automatically in Class TO and are required to contribute 
7 .5%.  The contributions required of participating employers are based on an actuarial valuation and 
are expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll during the period for which the amount is 
determined. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 0 , the rate of employer contribution was 4.78% 
of covered payroll. The 4.78% rate is composed of 4.00% for pension benefits and . 78% for health 
insurance premium assistance. The School District is required to pay the entire employer 
contribution rate and is reimbursed by the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the 
Commonwealth's share as determined by the income aid ratio (as defined in Act 29 of 1 994) , which 
is at least one-half of the total employer rate. 

Penn Manor School District's contributions to PSERS for the years ended June 30, 201 0 ,  2009 and 
2008 were $ 1  ,475 ,889,  $ 1 , 662 ,893 and $2,009,724, respectively. Those amounts are equal to the 
required contribution for each year. 

60 



1 4. Joint ventures: 

PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Lancaster County Career and Technology Center (LCCTC): 

The School District is one of 16-member school districts of the Lancaster County Career and 
Technology Center (LCCTC). LCCTC provides vocational-technical training and education to 
participating students of the member school districts. LCCTC is controlled and governed by the 
Career and Technology Board for Lancaster County, which is composed of school board members 
of all the member school districts. The School District's share of annual operating costs for LCCTC 
fluctuates, based upon the percentage of enrollment of each member school district. The amount 
paid for these services in the year ended June 30, 2010 was approximately $1 ,299,000. Complete 
financial statements for LCCTC can be obtained from the Administrative Office at 1730 Hans Herr 
Drive, P.O. Box 527, Willow Street, PA 17584. 

Lancaster County Vocational Technical School Authority: 

The School District is also a member of the Lancaster County Vocational Technical School Authority 
(the Authority). In 1968, the Authority entered into an agreement with the member school districts 
and the Lancaster County Career and Technology Center to acquire land and construct buildings to 
provide the facilities for the operations of LCCTC. In 1995, the Authority entered into an additional 
agreement with the same parties to provide funding for the upgrading and modernization of the 
LCCTC facilities. In 1998, the Authority entered into an additional agreement with the member 
school districts and the Authority Board to advance refund the Authority's 1995 bonds. The School 
District has an ongoing financial responsibility to the Authority for a portion of the debt obligation 
relating to these improvements. The School District's lease payment to the Authority for the year 
ended June 30, 2010 was $152,092 which has been reported in the School District's general fund. 
The operating lease with the Authority expired as of June 30, 2010. Complete financial statements 
for the Authority can be obtained from the Administrative Office at 1730 Hans Herr Drive, P.O. Box 
527, Willow Street, PA 17584. 

Lancaster-Lebanon Joint Authority: 

The School District is a member in the Lancaster-Lebanon Joint Authority (the Joint Authority). The 
Joint Authority was incorporated on February 14, 1980 under the Municipality Authorities Act of 
1945, Act of May 2, 1945, P. L. 382, as amended by the Boards of School Directors of the 22 school 
districts located in Lancaster and Lebanon counties. The school districts established the Joint 
Authority for the purposes of acquiring, holding, constructing, improving, maintaining, operating, 
owning and/or leasing projects for public school purposes and for the purposes of the Lancaster
Lebanon Intermediate Unit No. 13. The Joint Authority is not reported as part of the School District's 
reporting entity. 
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1 4. Joint ventures (continued): 

Lancaster-Lebanon Joint Authority (continued): 

The School District did not have any financial transactions with the Joint Authority during the year 
ended June 30, 201 0 . Complete financial statements for the Joint Authority can be obtained from 
the Administrative Office at 1 1 1 0 Enterprise Road, East Petersburg, PA 1 7520. 

Lancaster-Lebanon Intermediate Unit (LLlU) :  

The LL iU  Board of Directors consists o f  22 members from the intermediate unit's constituent school 
districts. The LL iU Board members are school district board members, who are elected by the 
public and are appointed to the LLiU Board by the member school districts' Board of Directors. 
Penn Manor School District is responsible for appointing one of these members. The LL iU Board 
has decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the ability to significantly 
influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. Penn Manor School District 
contracts with the LL iU for special education services for School District students. The amount paid 
for these services and various other support services during the year ended June 30, 20 1 0  was 
approximately $ 1 ,649 , 1 00 .  Complete financial information for LL iU can be obtained from the 
Administrative Office at 1 020 New Holland Avenue, Lancaster, PA 1 7601 .  

Lancaster County Academy (Academy): 

The Academy is an alternative public school organized by ten public school districts in Lancaster 
County to provide services in the county. Each of the public school districts appoints one member to 
serve on the joint operating committee. As a member district, the School District has an ongoing 
financial responsibility to fund the operations of the Academy. The amount paid to the Academy in 
the year ended June 30, 201 0 was $29,425. Complete financial information for the Academy can be 
obtained from the Administrative Office at 1 202 Park City Center, Lancaster, PA 1 7601 . 

Lancaster County Tax Collection Bureau (Bureau): 

The School District participates with all Lancaster County school districts and associated 
municipalities as prescribed by Act 32 for the collection of earned income taxes. The joint operating 
committee is comprised of representatives from the 1 7  -member school districts and 1 6  municipal 
representatives. The Bureau's operating expenditures are deducted from the distributions which are 
made quarterly. The School District's portion of the operating expenditures for the year ended June 
30, 201 0  was $ 1 20,000.  Financial information for the Bureau can be obtained from the 
Administrative Office at 1 845 William Penn Way, Lancaster, PA 1 7601 . 
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1 4. Joint ventures (continued): 

No member school district exercises specific control over the fiscal policies or operations of these joint 
ventures. As a result, these entities are not reported as part of the School District's reporting entity. 

1 5. Postemployment healthcare benefits: 

On July 1 ,  2008, the District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions. This Statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition and display of 
expenditures for postemployment benefits (OPEB) other than pensions and the related liabilities 
(assets) in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers. As a result of the 
implementation of the standard, OPEB costs are recognized in the government-wide statements and in 
the proprietary funds when the employee-related services are received by the employer rather than 
when the benefits are paid. The additional required financial note disclosures detailed below include 
information about actuarial accrued liabilities for these promised benefits associated with past 
employee services, and whether and to what extent those benefits have been funded. 

Plan description: 

The School District permits any professional employee who retires at age 50 or later to continue 
group insurance coverage to age 65 by remitting the monthly premium to the School District. The 
retiree's cost of group insurance is calculated by the plan administrator and is based on projected 
expenditures for the year. The retiree's premium for the group insurance is payable in advance on a 
monthly basis. The School District has elected to finance postemployment benefits on a pay-as-you
go basis. The School District recognizes expenditures for postemployment group insurance when 
claims are filed with the plan administrator. The School District is responsible for all claims in 
excess of the premiums received by the qualified retirees. 

The plan does not issue a publicly available financial report. As of June 30,  2009 , there were 53 
participants receiving benefits. 

Funding policy: 

The District currently follows a pay-as-you-go funding approach, paying an amount each year equal to 
the benefits claimed in that year. 
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1 5. Postemployment healthcare benefits (continued) : 

Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation: 

The District's annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the 
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected 
to cover the normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding 
excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components of the 
District's OPEB cost for the year, the amount contributed to the plan and changes in the District's 
OPEB obligation to the plan. GASB Statement No. 45 does not require a transition obligation in the 
year of initial implementation. Therefore, no transition obligation was recorded as of July 1, 2008. 

Normal cost as of July 1, 2009 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 

Total normal cost 

30-year amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability 

Annual required contribution 

Annual OPEB cost 
Contributions made (estimated) 

Increase in net OPEB obligation 

Net OPEB obligation: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

$ 418,304 
6,210 

424,514 

(8,4 72) 

$ 416,042 

$ 416,042 
(275,181) 

140,861 

137,992 

$ 278,853 
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1 5. Postemployment healthcare benefits (continued): 

Funding status and funding progress: 

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2009 was as follows: 

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability 

Funded ratio 
Covered payroll 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a percentage 

of covered payroll 

Funding status and funding progress: 

$ 3 ,497, 574 

0 .00% 
$ 26, 1 72 ,349 

1 3 . 36% 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and 
the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results 
are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 

Actuarial methods and assumptions: 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the 
time of the valuation. 

In the July 1 ,  2008 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal cost method was used. An assumption 
for salary increases was used only for spreading contributions over future pay under this cost 
method. For this purpose, salary increases were composed of a 3% cost-of-living adjustment, 1 % 
real wage growth, and for teachers and administrators a merit increase which varied by age from 3% 
to .25%. Benefits are allocated on a level basis over the earnings of an individual between the date 
of hire and the assumed retirement age. 
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1 5. Postemployment healthcare benefits (continued): 

Actuarial methods and assumptions (continued): 

Claims costs for medical and prescription drugs are based on the expected portion of the group's 
overall cost attributed to individuals in the specified age and gender brackets. Dental and vision 
costs are assumed not to vary with age or gender. Retiree contributions are assumed to increase at 
the same rate as the Health Care Cost Trend Rate which was 8.5% in 2008, decreasing .5% per 
year to an ultimate rate of 5% in 2015 and later. 

Other actuarial assumptions include the following: a 4.5% interest rate, retirement rates based on 
PSERS plan experience and mortality rates as assumed in the PSERS defined benefit pension plan 
actuarial valuation. 

1 6. Termination benefits: 

According to the District's negotiated agreement with the Penn Manor Education Association, teachers 
are eligible for an early retirement incentive if the date of retirement is at the conclusion of the school 
year, written notice of retirement is provided before April 1 preceding the date of retirement, the 
employee accepts benefits under the Pennsylvania Employee's Retirement System and the employee 
has at least 15 consecutive years of service at the School District. The retirement incentive is 
calculated by multiplying $125 per year for each year of employment with the School District and the 
total incentive is limited to a maximum of $20,000. Payments are paid as employer non-elective 
contributions to employee 403(b) accounts at the time of retirement. 

Retiring administrators with at least ten years of service may either elect to receive $250 for each full 
year of service to the District, or $500 for each full year of administrative service to the District. These 
amounts are in addition to any accrued sick leave otherwise payable upon retirement. At no time can 
the monetary compensation to a retiring administrator exceed $31,000. 

The District records retirement incentive expenses and liabilities at the government-wide level and in the 
proprietary funds. A prorata formula based on years of service is used to calculate the liabilities for 
employees who have less than the required minimum years of service. The retirement incentive liability 
was included in compensated absences in the statement of net assets and totaled approximately 
$647,700 as of June 30, 2010. 
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1 7. S pecific reserved fund balances: 

Specific reserves represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for a specific future use 
or are not appropriable for expenditure. At June 30, 201 0 , the School District has included the following 
amounts as specific reserved fund balances: 

Fiduciary funds, reserve for: 
Scholarships 
Endowments 

1 8. Designated fund balance: 

$ 32, 684 
36, 02 1  

$ 68,705 

Designated fund balances represent fund balances that are segregated for tentative plans to use 
financial resources in a future period. At June 30, 201 0 ,  the School District has included the following 
as a designated fund balance: 

General fund, designated for: 
Retirement rate stabilization 
Technology equipment replacement 
Textbook series replacement 

1 9. Commitments: 

$ 6 , 000,000 
650,000 
200,000 

$ 6 ,850,000 

As of June 30, 20 1 0 , the School District was committed under various construction contracts totaling 
$4,427,969 for the Martic Elementary School and the Marticville Middle School. Of that total, $206,691 
was recorded in accounts payable at year end. 

20. Subsequent events: 

At the School Board meeting on September 7, 201 0 , the School Board entered into a purchase 
agreement in the amount of $3 ,875 ,000 for approximately 44.48 acres of land on Charlestown Road in 
Manor Township. This parcel is adjacent to two parcels currently owned by the School District. 
Settlement is expected to occur prior to December 3 1 , 201 0 . 
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20. Subsequent events (continued) : 

On July 8 ,  20 1 0 , the School District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series B of 201 0 for $4,590,000 to 
currently refund the outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2005 and pay the costs of 
issuance of the bonds. Interest of 2 .00% is payable semiannually on June 1 and December 1 of each 
year. Bonds in various principal amounts will mature until June 201 2 , the scheduled date of final 
redemption. 

The School District has evaluated subsequent events through November 1 ,  201 0 , which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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Actuarial 
valuation 

date 

Admin istrators 7/1/2008 

Teachers and 
nonprofessional 7/1/2008 

Total 7/1/2008 

PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
(Required supplementary information) 

(unaudited) 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Actuarial 
accrued 

Actuarial l iabi l ity Unfunded 
value of (AAL) - AAL Funded 
assets entry age (UAAL) ratio 

( a ) ( b ) ( b-a ) ( alb ) 

$ $ 305,147 $ 305,147 0 .00% 

3,192,427 3,192,427 0 .00% 

$ $ 3,497,574 $ 3,497,574 0 .00% 

UAAL as a 
percentage 

Covered of covered 
payroll payrol l  

( c ) (( b-a )1 c) 

$ 1,994,795 15.30% 

24,177,554 13.20% 

$ 26,172,349 13.36% 
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Federal grantorl 

pass-through grantor/program title 

U S Department of Agriculture' 

Passed through the Pennsylvania 

Department of Education 

School Breakfast Program 

National Schoo! Lunch Program 

Total passed through the Pennsylvania 

Department of Educat!on 

Passed through the Pennsylvania 

Department of Agriculture, 

value of U.S.  donated commodities 

Total U S Department of Agnculture 

PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Federal 

Source CFDA 

code number --- ----

IIF 1 0,553 

S N/A 

I/F 1 0,555 

S N/A 

IIF 1 0,555 

Pass-through 

grantor's 

number 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

NIA 

N/A 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 0  

Accrued 

Grant period Program Total (deferred) 

beginningl or award received revenue at 

ending date amount for the year July 1 , 2009 

7/01/09 - 6/30/10 N/A 1 1 8,570 

7/01/09 - 6/30/10 N/A 1 1 ,841 

7/01109 - 6130/1 0 N/A 599,630 

7/01/09 - 6/30/1 0 N/A ___ 6_9_,259 

799,300 

07/01 107-06/30108 NIA 1 42,944 (b) (19,941) (a) 

942,244 ( 1 9,941) 

( continued) 

Accrued 

(deferred) 

Revenue revenue at 

recognized Expenditures June 30, 201 0 

1 1 8,570 1 1 8,570 

1 1 ,841 1 1 ,841 

599,630 599,630 

69,259 69,259 

799,300 799,300 

1 48,468 (e) 1 48,468 ( 1 4,417) (d) 

947,768 947,768 (14,417) 
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Federal grantorl 

pass-through grantor/program title 

U . S ,  Department of EducatIon 

Passed through the Pennsylvania 

Department of Educatjon� 

Academic Achievement: 

Title ! Grants to Local Educational 

Agencies: 

Safe and Drug-free Schools and 

Communities State Grants' 

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants: 

ARRA TITLE I 

ARRA BASIC ED SFSF 

Total passed through the Pennsylvania 

Department of Education 

Passed through the Lancaster�Lebanon 

Intermediate Unit #13,  IDEIA Part B 

ARRA IDEIA 

Total passed through Intennediate 

Unit # 1 3  

Total U . S .  Department o f  Education 

PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

r-ederal 

Source CFDA 

code number --- ----

IIF 84.010 

IIF 84.010 

ifF 84.010 

IIF 84 0 1 0  

ifF 84.186 

ifF 84. 1 86 

IIF 84.367 

IIF 84.367 

IIF 84.389 

IIF 84 394 

ifF 84 027 

ifF 84.027 

IIF 84 391 

Pass-through 

grantor's 

number 

077-090324 

077-100324 

01 3-090324 

013-1 00324 

1 00-090324 

1 00-1 00324 

020-090324 

020-1 00324 

127-1 00324 

126-1 00324 

062-1 00013 

062-100013 

128-100013 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 0 

Accrued 

Grant pened Program Total (deferred) 

beginmng! or award received revenue at Revenue 

ending date amount for the year July 1 , 2009 recognized 

7101108 9130109 $ 1 0,000 $ 6,000 6,000 

7101109 - 6130110 10,800 2,160 1 0,800 

7/01/08 9130109 501 ,610 137,155 1 1 0,192 25,994 

7/01109 - 6/30110 5 14,088 446,41 2  489,998 

7/01 108 - 9130109 1 1 ,712 2,342 2,342 

7101 109 - 6130110 42,769 6,529 1 3,991 

7101108 9130109 1 32,613 26,523 2 1 ,884 2,482 

7101109 - 6/30110 132,613 1 1 4,346 129,456 

7101109 - 613011 1 289,243 1 1 9,41 1 1 1 4,733 

7101109 - 6/3011 1 1 ,290,254 1 ,075,21 2  1 ,290,254 

1 , 936,090 140,418 2,077,708 

7101109 - 6/30110 821 ,460 821,460 821 ,460 

7101 109 - 6130110 206,395 206,395 206,395 

7101109 - 6/3011 1 1 ,200,233 547,887 584,548 

1 ,575,742 1 ,612,403 

3,51 1 ,832 140,418 3,690, 1 1 1  

( continued) 

Accrued 

(deferred) 

revenue at 

Expenditures June 30, 2010 

$ 10,800 8,640 

25,994 (969) 

489,998 43,586 

13,991 7,462 

2,482 (2,1 57) 

1 29,456 1 5, 1 1 0  

1 1 4 ,733 (4,678) 

1 ,290,254 2 1 5,042 

2,077,708 282,036 

821 ,460 

206,395 

584,548 ___ 36
_

,661 

1 ,612,403 36,661 

3,690, 1 1 1  31 8,697 
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Federal grantorl 

pass-through grantor/program title 

U.S, Department of Health and Human Services 

Passed through the Pennsylvania 

Department of Public Welfare, Access 

U.S. Institute of Museum and Library Serv!ces 

Passed through the Pennsylvania Department 

of Education, grants to states 

Total expenditures of federal awards 

PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

Federal 

Source CFDA 

code number --- ----

ifF 93 778 

ifF 45.310 

Pass-through 

grantor's 

number 

N/A 

202-809082 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Accrued 

Grant period Program Total (deferred) 

beginningl or award received revenue at Revenue 

ending date amount for the year July 1 , 2009 recognized 

7/01/09 - 6/30/10 2,230 2,230 $ 2,230 

7/01/05 - 6/30/06 45,000 (636) (636) 

4,455,670 1 19,841 4,640,109 

( continued) 

Accrued 

(deferred) 

revenue at 

Expenditures June 30, 2010 

2,230 

4,640,109 304,280 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

Source codes: 

1 =  

F =  

indirect funding 

Federal share 

S = State share 

CFDA Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 

Denotes major program 

84 , 0 1 0  

84,389 

84,027 

84,391 

84,394 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,  201 0  

Calculation of 50% rule (25% for low-risk auditee): 

Total expenditures per above 

Less state share of National School Lunch and School Breakfast Program expenditures 

Title I Grants 

ARRA Title I 

IDEIA 

ARRA IDEIA 

ARRA Basic Education Subsidy 

$ 526,792 

1 1 4,733 

1 ,027,855 

584,548 

1 ,290,254 

$ 4,640, 1 09 

8 1 , 1 00 

$ 4,559,009 

$ 3,544, 1 82 

4,559,009 77�74°/o Programs meet the 50% requirement 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Note 1 - Significant accounting policies 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Note 2 - Food donation 

a) Beginning inventory at July 1 

b) Total amount of commodities received from the Department of Agriculture 

c) Total amount of commodities used 

d) Ending inventory at June 30 

Note 3 - Reconciliation 

Deferred amount at June 30, 2009 

Correction to US lnstitute of Museum and Library Sciences (45,310) 

Deferred amount at July 1, 2009 

$ 

$ 

(585) 

(5 1 )  

(636) 
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BROWN SCHULTZ SHERIDAN & FRITZ 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND BUSIN ESS ADVISORS 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 

Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 

Board of School Directors 
Penn Manor School District 
Millersville, Pennsylvania 

with Government Auditing Standards 

A Professional Co r poration 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Penn Manor School District as of and for the year 
ended June 30,  201 0 , which collectively comprise Penn Manor School District's basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated November 1 ,  20 1 0 . We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit , we considered Penn Manor School District's internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control , such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Penn Manor School District's financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the School Board, management and federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 

Lancaster, Pennsylvania 
November 1 ,  20 1 0  
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BROWN SCHULTZ SHERIDAN & FRI TZ 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A N D  BUSIN ESS ADVISORS 

Report on Compliance with Requirements 
That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect 

on Each Major Program and on Internal Control 
Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 

A Profess i on a l  Corporation 

Board of School Directors 
Penn Manor School District 
Millersville, Pennsylvania 

Compliance 
We have audited the compliance of Penn Manor School District with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of Penn Manor School District's major federal programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2010. Penn Manor School District's major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal 
programs is the responsibility of Penn Manor School District's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on Penn Manor School District's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Penn Manor School 
District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination of Penn Manor School District's compliance with those 
requirements. 

In our opinion Penn Manor School District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2010. 
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Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Penn Manor School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Penn Manor School District's internal control 
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the Penn Manor School District's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct , noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely 
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, 
on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph described in this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the School Board, management and federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 

Lancaster, Pennsylvania 
November 1, 2010 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS: 

Financial statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
considered to be material weakness(es)? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
considered to be material weakness(es)? 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for 
major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Section 51 O(a) of 
Circular A-133? 

Identification of major programs: 

Unqualified 

yes � no 

yes X none reported 

yes _X_ no 

yes _X_ no 

yes � none reported 

Unqualified 

yes _X_ no 

CFDA number(s) Name of federal program or cluster 

84.010 
84.389 

84.027 
84.391 
84.394 

Title I, Grants to Local Education Agencies 
Title I, Grants to Local Education Agencies, 

Recovery Act 
Special Education - IDEIA Part B 
Special Education - IDEIA Part B, Recovery Act 
State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) -

Education State Grants Recovery Act 

( continued) 
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PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

YEA R  ENDED JUNE 30, 20 1 0  

I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS (CONTINUED) :  

Dollar threshold used to  distinguish between type A 
and type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

II .  FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS: 

None 

I II. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS: 

None 

$ 300,000 

yes � no 
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Finding 2009-0 1 : 

Program identification: 

Condition: 

Recommendation: 

Current status: 

PENN MANOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 0 

Department of Agriculture, National School Lunch Program 
and School Breakfast Program - CFDA Nos. 1 0 . 555 and 
1 0 .553 passed through by the Pennsylvania Department of 
Education. 

The School District selected 1 7  samples and conducted the 
required annual verification process; however, upon receiving 
written evidence from parents and guardians, the income 
eligibility for four of the households was incorrectly 
recalculated. 

The School District should implement additional procedures to 
review the written responses received from households who 
participate in the verification process. Additionally, income 
calculations should be double-checked by an employee who is 
independent of the initial review process or through the use of 
the School District's food service software system. 

This condition has been corrected in the current year. 
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